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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL. APPEARANCE

At one time the focal point of a large estate, the Hearne House com­ 
manded an imposing position between the river and the town, with the 
Licking River on the east within a quarter of a mile of its Juncture with 
the Ohio, and the broad, extended vista from the town center along Fifth 
Street on the west.

The two-and-one-half story, red-brick home constructed in 1874 has 
anachronistically simple massing, evoking a Georgian model. Although 
no bays or other elements break the outline or wall surfaces, the first- 
floor window heads and enriched door treatment have mid-Victorian, 
Italianate plasticity. The stilted segmental hoodmolds of the second 
story, however, betray their actual date. The roof line cornice contains 
widely overhanging eaves decorated with brackets and a frieze punctuated 
by the attic windows.

Approximately twenty years ago the house interior was significantly al­ 
tered when the house was converted from a private residence to apart­ 
ments. However, the rooms are in good repair. Still visible is joinery 
typical of the mid-Victorian period with fine woods and excellent floors. 
The elaborately paneled sliding doors separate the front rooms on both 
sides and intricate plaster ceiling medallions.

To the rear of the house, on the southeast corner of the lot, is a carriage 
house, extensively altered, where the owners presently reside.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The owner-builder of Hearne House was Jonathan David Hearne, a promi­ 
nent nineteenth-century businessman and civic leader in the greater 
Cincinnati area. Among other important positions, Hearne served as 
Director of the Covington and Cincinnati Suspension Bridge Company and 
was responsible for the execution of John A. Roebling's bridge across the 
Ohio, completed in 1866. He was also President of the Cincinnati and 
Newport Iron and Pipe Company and President of the Third National Bank, 
which survives as the Fifth Third Bank. Frafflnl872 to 1873 he served as 
a member of the Covington City Council.

Hearne was born August 7, 1829, in Bourbon County, and came to the 
Covington area around 1861. He was a close personal friend of Jesse 
Grant, who lived a short distance away on Greenup Street and was the 
father of President U. S. Grant. Hearne was a pallbearer at Jesse 
Grant's funeral, attended by the President.

In conclusion, Hearne House is important in that it was the home of one 
of Covington's most noted citizens of the late nineteenth century. The 
exterior, relatively unaltered since its construction, represents a hand­ 
some combination of several architectural styles. In addition, its 
location at the head of a major roadway approach to a nearby district 
already listed on the National Register makes it an exceptionally out­ 
standing visual element related to the revitalization of this area of 
Covington.
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The house is located on a rather narrow strip of land between Garrard 
Street and the extremely steep bank of the Licking River. The house 
itself is built quite close to the street and, although an independent 
block with originally much land on either side, the front is treated as a 
mere facade: the sides are very plain compared to the ornamented and 
belted front.

The abruptness of the drop down to the river is emphasized dramatically 
by a gazebo, probably constructed late in the 19th century, which is 
perched on the edge of the bluff. It is octagonal in plan, with longer 
sides entered from the land and facing across the river. It is supported 
on stilts away from the cliff-face. Bold bracketed posts uplift a 
sweeping concave eight-sided 15-foot-high roof topped by High Victorian 
Gothic wrought-iron cresting. Although in somewhat poor condition, 
the gazebq located on axis and about 20 feet behind the house, forms 
an integral part of the complex of house and carriage house.

Note that the details of the facade have a high Victorian Romanesque 
flavor, particularly the stylized capitals, similar to several other examples 
in Covington.

In spite of the closing off of some suites of rooms as apartments and lack 
of maintenance, the interiors are in remarkably complete and unaltered 
condition. The very narrow central hall and shallow vestibule give little 
hint of the splendors of the formal rooms.

To the right are double parlors linked by a segmental arch fcow filled in). 
Mid-Victorian marble round-arched mantels are surmounted by handsome 
mirrors of somewhat more angular detail. There is also a series of 
friezes, cornice moldings, and ceiling medallions--some probably from 
the original scheme of 1874, others perhaps from a redecoration about 
the late 1880s. An antechamber across the hall features a frieze and 
medallion of heartily naturalistic morning-glories entwined with grapes. 
Its mahogany mantel inset^with bronze plaques of male figures clad in 
elaborate Teutonic armor a la Diirer is echoed in still grander form in 
the dining room, There the mantel is enriched not only with multiple 
shelves, but by a colored-glass window deeply recessed in the wall 
above, the sides of whose niche are bevelled mirrors creating a 
startling effect. This end of the dining room was apparently extended 
out beyond the block of the house and redecorated about the same time as 
the parlors: a Lincrusta dado, painted ceiling, green-and-gold panelled 
doors and woodwork, and hand-blocked wall-paper with pastoral landscapes
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seem to date from just before the turn of the century. Other rooms are 
said to retain the original mantels and woodwork.
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